
REGULAR COUNCIL MEETING 

Tuesday, May 21, 2024 6:00pm 
 https://us06web.zoom.us/j/88982525535?pwd=VzlXOU5taldoYkgySUdTcldqSUVGQT09 

Meeting ID: 889 8252 5535       Passcode: 675736 
 One tap mobile    929-205-6099 

 

Page Agenda Item 

 1.Welcome and ceremonial swearing-in of Mayor and Councilors 

 1-a. Call to Order – 6:00PM 

 2. Adjustments to the Agenda 

 3. Visitors & Communications 

 4. Consent Agenda 

 A. Approval of Minutes 
i. Regular City Council Meeting of Tuesday, May 7, 2024 

 B. City Warrants 
i. Ratification of City Warrants from Week of May 15, 2024 

ii. Approval of City Warrants from Week of May 22, 2024 

 C. Clerk’s Office Licenses & Permits 

 D. Authorize the Manager to execute contract(s) 

 E. Ratify Council’s 5/7/24 approval of the Aldrich + Elliot contract 

 5. City Clerk & Treasurer Report 

 6. Liquor/Cannabis Control Boards 

 7. City Manager’s Report 

 8. New Business 

 A. VLCT Council essentials training (G. Baxter) 

 B. BADC Quarterly Report (A. Green) 

 C. FY24 budget update (Manager/Assistant City Manager) 

 D. Assign Council liaisons to committees (Manager) 

 E. Authorize one or more Councilors to approve weekly warrants on non-meeting weeks 

 F. Resolution #2024-08: Financial authorization of Cheryl Metivier, Barre City Clerk/Treasurer 

 G. Set Clerk/Treasurer compensation (Clerk) 

 9. Upcoming Business 

 10. Round Table 

 11. Executive Session – as needed 

 12. Adjourn 

 

The next meeting of the City Council is scheduled for Tuesday, June 4, 2024.  

 

Other Meetings & Events 

Thursday May 23rd 

Justice, Equity, Diversity, Inclusion and Belonging Committee  6:30  ZOOM ONLY 
 

1

https://us06web.zoom.us/j/88982525535?pwd=VzlXOU5taldoYkgySUdTcldqSUVGQT09
https://us06web.zoom.us/j/88982525535?pwd=VzlXOU5taldoYkgySUdTcldqSUVGQT09
execassist
Typewritten Text

execassist
Typewritten Text
5

execassist
Typewritten Text
9

execassist
Typewritten Text

execassist
Typewritten Text

execassist
Typewritten Text

execassist
Typewritten Text
10

execassist
Typewritten Text

execassist
Typewritten Text
44

execassist
Typewritten Text
83

execassist
Typewritten Text
98

execassist
Typewritten Text
99

execassist
Typewritten Text

execassist
Typewritten Text

execassist
Typewritten Text

execassist
Typewritten Text



Ground Rules for Interaction with each other, staff, and the general public 
 
 Rules may be reviewed periodically 

 
 Practice mutual respect 

o Assume good intent and explain impact 
o Ask clarifying questions 
o If off course, interrupt and redirect 

 
 Think, then A.C.T. 

o Alternatives – Identify all choices 
o Consequences – Project outcomes 
o Tell your story – Prepare your defense 

 
 Ethics checks 

o Is it legal? 
o Is it in scope (Charter, ordinance, policy)? 
o Is it balanced? 

 
 “ELMO” – Enough, Let’s Move On 

o Honor time limits 
o Be attentive, not repetitive 

 
 Be open-minded to different solutions or ideas 

o Remarks must be relevant and appropriate to the discussion; stay on subject 
o Don’t leave with “silent disagreement” 
o Decisions agreed on by consensus when possible, majority when necessary 
o All decisions of Council are final 

 
 No blame 

o Articulate expectations of each other 
o We all deeply care about the City in our own way 
o Debate issues, not personalities 

 
 Electronics 

o No texting, email, or videogames during the meeting 
 

2



1 

 

             City of Barre, Vermont 
 

 
    

  
 

MEMO 
 

TO:   City Council 

FROM:  The Manager 

DATE:   5/17/2024 

SUBJECT: Packet Memo re: 5/21/2024 Council Meeting Agenda Items  
 

Councilors: 
 

The following notes apply to packet support materials for the Subject Council Meeting Agenda.  As a reminder, the Council’s next 

meeting is scheduled for Tuesday, June 4, 2024 at 6:00PM.  
 

Adjustments to the Agenda 

I will request two adjustments to the agenda as follows: 

 Add a new item 3-a after Visitors & Communications to consider approval of Resolution #2024-09 in recognition of the 50th 

anniversary of National Emergency Medical Services week.   

 Add a new item 4-F to the consent agenda to accept the resignation of Joe Mueller from the Homelessness Task Force, effective 

May 31, 2024. 

 

I will also request  

 

8-A VLCT Council essentials training (Garrett Baxter) 

Garrett Baxter, Senior Staff Attorney at the VLCT Municipal Assistance Center, will attend the Council meeting in-person to present 

on Council essentials, focusing on open meeting law, public records, and conflicts of interest.   Mr. Baxter’s presentation is included 

in the packet.   
 

8-C FY24 budget update (Manager/Assistant City Manager) 

There is no memo in the packet for this agenda item as the Assistant City Manager and I are still preparing data for this presentation.  

On Tuesday night, we will make a brief presentation on current year-end projections and outlook.   

 

8-E Authorize one or more Councilors to approve weekly warrants on non-meeting weeks 

There is a memo in the packet for this agenda item.  The Council has to assign by vote one or more members who will be authorized 

to sign warrants during weeks when the Council does not meet.  

 

8-G Set Clerk & Treasurer compensation 

There is no memo in the packet for this agenda item.  Council will be provided with payroll information to inform its decision to set 

the compensation for the new Clerk & Treasurer.   

 

Upcoming Business (tentative) 

 June 4 

o Infill study report 

o RIVER program presentation by CVRPC 

o Sultana Kahn, substance abuse prevention 

o Fee schedule 

o Committee applicant interviews 

 

 

         R. Nicolas Storellicastro 

                   City Manager 

(802) 476-0240 

citymanager@barrecity.org 

     6 N. Main St., Suite 2 

          Barre, VT  05641 

       www.barrecity.org 

3

mailto:citymanager@barrecity.org
http://www.barrecity.org/


Barre City Resolution #2024-09 
 

A RESOLUTION IN APPRECIATION OF BARRE CITY EMERGENCY MEDICAL SERVICES STAFF ON THE 
OCCASION OF THE 50TH ANNIVERSARY OF NATIONAL EMERGENCY MEDICAL SERVICES WEEK  

 
WHEREAS, the Barre City Fire and Emergency Medical Services Department consists of emergency medical technicians, 
advanced emergency medical technicians, paramedics, educators; and 
 
WHEREAS, the staff of Barre City Fire and Emergency Medical Services Department are prepared to provide lifesaving 
care to those in need 24 hours a day, seven days a week; and 
 
WHEREAS, emergency medical services are vital to public safety; and 
 
WHEREAS, quick access to quality emergency care dramatically improves the survival and recovery rate of those who 
experience sudden illness or injury; and 
 
WHEREAS, May 19-25, 2024 marks the 50th year anniversary of National Emergency Medical Services Week, and this year’s 
theme is “Honoring Our Past, Forging Our Future,” which reminds us to acknowledge the work of those who built the profession, 
while also recognizing those who are building the professional of the future.  
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED on the occasion of National Emergency Medical Services Week that the Barre 
City Council recognizes our emergency medical services staff, and thanks them for their valuable contributions to the community 
and dedicated service to the residents of the City of Barre; and 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that the City Council hereby extends its fullest appreciation to all our emergency medical 
services staff, and acknowledges that they are an important part of what makes Barre City a safe and special place to live, 
work, and recreate. 
 
   
BY ORDER OF THE CITY COUNCIL THIS 21st DAY OF MAY 2024 
 
 
__________________________________ __________________________________ 
Thom Lauzon, Mayor    Cheryl Metivier, City Clerk & Treasurer 
 
 
__________________________________ __________________________________ 
Emel Cambel, Ward I     Sonya Spaulding, Ward I 
 
 
__________________________________ __________________________________ 
Teddy Waszazak, Ward II   Amanda Gustin, Ward II 
 
 
__________________________________ __________________________________ 
Michael Deering II, Ward III   Samn Stockwell, Ward III 

4



To be approved at 05/21/24 Barre City Council Meeting 

 1

Regular Meeting of the Barre City Council 
Held May 7, 2024 

 
The Regular Meeting of the Barre City Council was called to order in person and via video platform by 
Mayor Jake Hemmerick at 6:00 PM at City Hall, Barre, Vermont.  In attendance were:  From Ward I, 
Councilors Emel Cambel and Thom Lauzon; from Ward II, Councilors Michael Boutin and Teddy 
Waszazak; and from Ward III, Councilors Michael Deering and Samn Stockwell.  City staff members 
present were City Manager Nicolas Storellicastro, Police Chief Brad Vail, and Clerk/Treasurer Carol 
Dawes. 
 
Absent:  NONE 
 
Adjustments to the Agenda:  

 Add approval of Aldrich + Elliot contract under consent agenda. 
 Move the mayoral proclamation from under new business to follow approval of resolutions. 
 Move approval of Service Master contract to new business from consent agenda. 

 
Resolutions 2024-06 and 2024-07:  Recognize the service of Stephanie Quaranta and Jeffrey 
Bergeron. 
Clerk Dawes read the resolutions honoring Stephanie Quaranta for more than 36 years of service as 
Recreation Director (resolution #2024-06), and Jeffrey Bergeron for more than 16 years of service as 
director Buildings & Community Services ( resolution #2024-07).  Both resolutions were approved by the 
Council on motions of Councilor Lauzon, seconded by Councilor Stockwell.  Motions carried. 
 
Those in attendance gave several standing ovations to Ms. Quaranta and Mr. Bergeron.  Ms. Quaranta 
was given an official copy of the resolution and a lifetime pass to the municipal swimming pool.  
Saturday, May 11, 2024 was declared Stephanie Quaranta Day in the City of Barre.  Mr. Bergeron was 
given an official copy of the resolution and a lifetime pass for use of the batting cages.  Sunday, May 12, 
2024 was declared Jeffrey Bergeron Day in the City of Barre. 
 
Mayoral Proclamation honoring Barre City elected officials with expiring terms. 
Mayor Hemmerick read the proclamation honoring those elected officials whose current terms will expire 
at next week’s annual meeting election:  Mayor Hemmerick, Clerk Dawes, and Councilors Lauzon, 
Boutin and Deering. 
 
Visitors and Communications:   
Several people spoke in recognition of Mayor Hemmerick’s tenure as City Councilor and Mayor, and 
thanked him for his service.  Those who spoke were: 
Lisa Liotta 
Bernadette Rose 
AJ Jones 
John LePage 
Kaitlin Burnham 

Ericka Reil 
Joelen Mulvaney 
Janet Van Fleet 
Ellen Kaye 
Rachel Van Vliet 

Joe Shadroui 
Jim Deschler 
Garrett Grant 
Sue Higby 
Danielle Owczarski 

 
Mayor Hemmerick thanked people for their comments, and noted his parents and sister were in 
attendance via Zoom. 
 
Approval of Consent Agenda:   
Council approved the following consent agenda items on motion of Councilor Lauzon, seconded by 
Councilor Stockwell.  Motion carried. 

A. Approval of Minutes: 

5



To be approved at 05/21/24 Barre City Council Meeting 

 2

i. Regular meeting of April 23, 2024. 
B. City Warrants as presented: 

1. Ratification of Week 2024-18, dated May 1, 2024: 
i. Accounts Payable:  $86,154.48 

ii. Payroll (gross):  $149,731.93 
2. Approval of Week 2024-19, dated May 8, 2024 

i. Accounts Payable:  $205,423.51 
ii. Payroll (gross):  $146,587.75 

C. Clerk’s Office Licenses and Permits:  NONE 
D. Authorize the Manager to execute contract(s) 

i. Service Master Restoration:  City Hall flood restoration (moved to new business under 
adjustments) 

ii. Aldrich + Elliot:  headworks upgrade at WWTF (added under adjustments) 
 
City Clerk & Treasurer Report –  
City Clerk/Treasurer Dawes reported on the following: 

 Annual meeting election will be held on May 14th.  Polls will be open at the auditorium from 
7AM – 7PM.  More than 600 early absentee ballots have been issued, and nearly half have been 
returned to date. 

 Fourth quarter property taxes are due by May 15th.  Most of City Hall will be closed Tuesday, 
May 14th, because of the annual meeting date, however the Clerk’s office will be open that day to 
accept property tax payments. 

 
Liquor Control Board/Cannabis Control Board – NONE 
 
City Manager’s Report –  
Manager Storellicastro reported on the following: 

 Held a flood after-action debriefing today with department heads, VT Emergency Management 
(VEM) and Central Vermont Regional Planning Commission (CVRPC).  Barre City is the first 
community to go through this process, and the discussions honed in on mitigation, culvert 
upsizing, and access to the public safety building. 

 The City submitted two additional requests for congressionally directed funding projects:  North 
End housing and replacing the digester at the wastewater treatment facility. 

 The state has submitted a significant request for congressionally directed funding for housing in 
the North End. 

 New England Municipal Consultants (NEMC), the firm conducting the city-wide reappraisal, has 
started sending out letters to property owners, informing them of the upcoming reappraisal and 
offering ways to schedule an inspection.  NEMC will be reaching out to all property owners over 
the coming months. 

 Installation of City Hall HVAC systems will start in approximately 2 weeks. 
 
New Business –  
A)  Police Department trends report. 
Police Chief Brad Vail said the body-worn camera program rolled out starting last month.  Operations are 
under the policy on use of cameras.  Demonstrations are available to Councilors upon request.  Mayor 
Hemmerick thanked the Chief for shepherding through the Police Advisory Committee approval of 84 
policies to date.  Councilor Boutin asked if the City was moving towards accreditation through CALEA 
(Commission on Accreditation for Law Enforcement Agencies).  The Chief said many of the policies that 
have been adopted were designed to satisfy CALEA standards.  Accreditation is expensive, but could 

6



To be approved at 05/21/24 Barre City Council Meeting 

 3

provide some potential insurance cost savings.  The Police Advisory Committee is aware of the 
accreditation option. 
 
The Chief gave a PowerPoint crime trend overview report.  He noted violent crimes are decreasing, due in 
part to a variety of available programs including the City’s embedded mental health clinician, and the 
recovery coach available through Turning Point Center. 
 
The Chief said quality of life crimes are the most prevalent, and the number of domestic disturbances is 
higher than the statewide average.  There was discussion on the effects of domestic violence on children 
and families, collaborating with Circle & Mosaic on developing a public service campaign to address 
domestic violence, filling police department staff vacancies, and police academy training schedules. 
 
B)  Update on Auditorium renovation project. 
Manager Storellicastro reminded the Council the City was awarded a $3.5 million Congressionally 
Directed Spending (CDS) grant sponsored by Senator Sanders for auditorium improvements including 
ADA access, electrical upgrades, audio/visual improvements, and HVAC upgrades.  The original grant 
requires a local match of approximately $2.7 million.  The grant is administered through USDA, and the 
City has been working with them since last summer to identify impacts of last summer’s flooding on the 
operating budget and the ability to secure matching funds.  The City has the opportunity to apply to phase 
the projects and therefore forgo identification of the full match.  The current discussions have been 
around identifying approximately $4 million in projects, with $3.5 million coming from the CDS and the 
balance being covered by a local match. 
 
There was discussion on what projects should be the focus of phase 1, and being sure to include the ADA 
renovations.  The Manager will create a list of possible projects for the Council to review and prioritize. 
 
Bernadette Rose said the Buildings and Facilities Committee has made a commitment to raise $100,000 
of the required matching funds.  Ms. Rose suggested reaching out to neighboring Barre Town to seek 
support of this regional facility.  It was noted the facility serves as a state emergency shelter, and there 
may be opportunities to secure matching funds from Vermont Emergency Management. 
 
Council approved authorizing the Manager to prepare a phased approach to the auditorium upgrade 
project on motion of Councilor Boutin, seconded by Councilor Lauzon.  Motion carried. 
 
C)  Warned for 7:00 PM:  Informational meeting for May 14, 2024 annual meeting election. 
The informational meeting opened at 7:35 PM.  Clerk Dawes said such a meeting is required in the 10 
days before an annual meeting election, and this is an opportunity for the Council and public to ask 
questions about or comment on what’s on the ballot.  Bernadette Rose thanked the Clerk for advocating 
for voter access for early absentee voting and voting at the polls.  Hearing no additional comments or 
questions, the informational meeting closed at 7:41 PM. 
 
D)  Mayor Proclamation recognizing the service of Council members with expiring terms. 
Moved to earlier in the meeting through adjustments to the agenda. 
 
Added)  Authorize Manager to approve Service Master contract for City Hall flood damage 
restorations.  (moved from consent agenda through adjustments to the agenda) 
There was discussion on repairs being done in City Hall following flood damage from last summer.  
Manager Storellicastro said funding is coming from insurance and FEMA, with any balance coming from 
the City. 
 

7



To be approved at 05/21/24 Barre City Council Meeting 

 4

Council authorized the Manager to execute the contract with Service Master for repairs to City Hall on 
motion of Councilor Boutin, seconded by Councilor Lauzon.  Motion carried. 
 
Upcoming Business – 
Next Council meeting is May 21st.  There will be a VLCT training for the new Council, a quarterly update 
from Barre Area Development Corporation, and presentation of proposed fee schedule changes.  Council 
will also take up discussion on allocating ARPA funds in the near future. 
 
Councilor Boutin said he would like Council to discuss the Manager’s previous decision with regard to 
Ms. Chase’s fence, and the replacement thereof. 
 
Councilor Lauzon said there will need to be a discussion on identifying a funding source for pre-
engineering expenses for the north end.  The Council might consider using ARPA funds. 
 
Round Table –  
Councilor Stockwell said she had a great Green-Up Day experience getting out and cleaning up around 
the City.  She also attended the Justice, Equity, Diversity, Inclusion and Belonging Committee 
presentation at the Barre Area Development Corporation economic summit. 
 
Councilor Waszazak thanked those whose terms are ending next week, and said good work has been 
accomplished. 
 
Councilor Boutin noted last Saturday’s Blow Up to Glow Up festivities, and said he is proud of his niece, 
who organizes the annual event. 
 
Mayor Hemmerick said this is his final meeting, and it’s been an honor to serve. 
 
Executive Session – Councilor Boutin made the motion to find that premature general public knowledge 
of personnel issues to be discussed would clearly place the City of Barre at a substantial disadvantage 
should the discussions be public.  The motion was seconded by Councilor Lauzon.  Motion carried. 
 
Council went into executive session at 7:52 PM to discuss personnel under the provisions of 1 VSA § 313 
on motion of Councilor Boutin, seconded by Councilor Lauzon.  Manager Storellicastro and Clerk Dawes 
were invited into the executive session.  Motion carried. 
 
Council came out of executive session at 8:00 PM on motion of Councilor Lauzon, seconded by 
Councilor Stockwell.  Motion carried. 
 
The meeting adjourned at 8:00 PM on motion of Councilor Stockwell, seconded by Councilor Lauzon.  
Motion carried. 
 
The open portions of the meeting were recorded on the video platform. 
 
 
 Respectfully submitted, 
 
 
 Carolyn S. Dawes, City Clerk 

8



9



10



11



12



13



14

citymanager
Typewritten Text
Agenda item 4-E  May 21, 2024

citymanager
Typewritten Text

citymanager
Typewritten Text

citymanager
Typewritten Text



15



16



17



18



19



20



21



22



23



24



25



26



27



28



29



30



31



32



33



34



35



36



37



38



39



40



41



42



43



TRANSPARENCY LAWS: 

OVERVIEW AND Q&A

CITY OF BARRE

GARRETT BAXTER, SENIOR STAFF ATTORNEY

VLCT MUNICIPAL ASSISTANCE CENTER

 Open Meeting Law
 Public Records Act
 Conflicts of Interest

44



SOURCES OF AUTHORITY:
GOVERNANCE CHARTERS

What?

Governance Charters  ability to 
deviate from general state law.

Where? 

Title 24A of the Vermont Statutes.

45

https://legislature.vermont.gov/statutes/title/24APPENDIX
https://legislature.vermont.gov/statutes/chapter/24APPENDIX/001


VERMONT’S 

Open Meeting Law

(OML) 

1 V.S.A. §§ 310 - 314

46

https://legislature.vermont.gov/statutes/chapter/01/005


WHAT IS THE OPEN MEETING LAW?
WHY DO WE HAVE IT?

Statutory citation: 1 V.S.A. §§ 310-314

“All meetings of a public body are declared to be open to the 
public at all times, except as provided in section 313 of this title 
[i.e. executive sessions].” 1 V.S.A. § 312(a)

“[The law] protects the interest of the public to hold its elected officers accountable 
by, among other ways, requiring meetings of a public body to be ‘open to the public 
at all times,’ except when in executive session, 1 V.S.A. § 312(a), and by requiring that 
the public be given a ‘reasonable opportunity to express its opinion’ on matters being 
considered.” Town of  Brattleboro v. Garfield, 180 Vt. 90 (2006)

47

https://legislature.vermont.gov/statutes/chapter/01/005
https://legislature.vermont.gov/statutes/section/01/005/00312


WHO DOES THE OPEN MEETING LAW APPLY TO?

Every “public body” of a municipality.

“’Public body’ means any board, council, or commission of 

the State or one or more of its political subdivisions, any 

board, council, or commission of any agency, authority, or 

instrumentality of the State or one or more of its political 

subdivisions, or any committee of any of the foregoing 

boards, councils, or commissions…”  

1 V.S.A. § 310(4)

Legislative 
Body

Committee

Subcommittee

48

https://legislature.vermont.gov/statutes/section/01/005/00310


WHEN DOES THE OPEN MEETING LAW APPLY?

Whenever a public body is “meeting”

What is a Meeting?

“A gathering of a quorum of the members of a public body 
for the purpose of discussing the business of the public 
body or for the purpose of taking action.”

1 V.S.A. § 310(2)

49

https://legislature.vermont.gov/statutes/section/01/005/00310


WHAT IS A “MEETING”?

Public 
bodies

Quorum Discuss/take 
action on 

business of 
the body

50



OPEN MEETING LAW REQUIREMENTS

PROVIDE ADVANCE 
NOTICE OF 
MEETINGS

CREATE AND POST  
AGENDAS FOR ALL 

REGULAR AND 
SPECIAL MEETINGS

KEEP MEETINGS OPEN
TO THE PUBLIC (UNLESS 
AN EXCEPTION APPLIES) 

PROVIDE REASONABLE 
OPPORTUNITY FOR 
PUBLIC COMMENT

TAKE AND POST 
MINUTES.

51



WHAT IS NOT A MEETING?

Communicating (verbally, in writing, electronically, 
etc.) for the purpose of:

Scheduling a meeting;

Organizing an agenda; or

Distributing information or materials to discuss 
at a later meeting,

 provided that:

• No other board business is 
discussed/conducted; and

• Any resulting written communication is made 
available for inspection and copying under the 
Public Records Act.

When a quorum of members attends:

Social gatherings, conventions, press 
conferences, training programs, press 
conferences, media events, or otherwise gathers, 

 provided that....

• they don’t discuss the specific business of the 
public body that, at the time, the participating 
members expect to be future business. 

A duly warned meeting of another public body, 
provided that:

• the attending body doesn’t conduct any 
business.

52



OPEN MEETING LAW EXEMPTIONS

 Deliberations in connection with quasi-judicial proceedings; and 

 Executive sessions explicitly authorized by law; 

 Site inspections for the purposes of assessing damage or making tax assessments 
or abatements;

 Clerical work or work assignments of staff; and

 Routine day-to-day administrative matters that do not require action by the public 
body, provided no money is appropriated, expended or encumbered.

53



ACT 1, EXPIRES JULY 1, 2024 
ACT 1 REQUIREMENTS FOR REMOTE MEETINGS

 When a public body holds a remote meeting, it 
must:

 use technology that allows the public to 
attend by electronic or other means;

 allow the public to access the meeting by 
telephone;

 include and post information on how the 
public can access the meeting electronically in 
its agenda; and

 record their meetings, if it’s a meeting of a 
legislative body, unless unusual circumstances 
make it impossible to do so.

 A public body may electronically post meeting 
agendas and special meeting notices.

54



S.55: SUBSTANTIAL CHANGES TO THE OPEN MEETING LAW

 S.55 Awaiting Governor Signature, in effect JULY 1, 2024.

 Nonadvisory public bodies must record (audio or video) meetings and post a copy of the 
recording in a designated electronic location for at least 30 days (following posting of meeting 
minutes) unless “undue hardship” applies;

 Allows nonadvisory bodies to hold electronic only for emergency meetings or local incidents;

 Allows “advisory bodies” to hold electronic only meetings (using a platform that allows direct 
access);

 “Requests for Access” of electronic or physical access (unless undue hardship applies);

 Municipalities must post on their website (if it has one): 1) explanation of the process for 
submitting an OML notice of violation complaint and 2) copy of the text of 1 V.S.A.§ 314;

 Annual training developed by the Secretary of State’s Office will be required starting July 1, 
2025, for chair of legislative body, town manager, and mayor.

VLCT will provide more information in its forthcoming Legislative Session Wrap-Up.

55



OPEN MEETING LAW
VIOLATIONS & ENFORCEMENT

Avoid intentional 
violations of the 
Open Meeting 
Law.

1
Cure all alleged 
violations, even 
if inadvertent.

2
If a complaint is 
received, 
immediately call 
us or your town 
attorney for 
guidance.

3

56



OPEN MEETING LAW:
WHERE TO FIND MORE INFORMATION?

57



VLCT ONLINE RESOURCES

 Effective Meeting Toolkit (which contains):

 Model Notice and Agenda for Municipal Meetings

 Model Pledge for Municipal Public Bodies

 Model Rules of Procedure for Meetings of Public Bodies

 Model Rules for Public Participation at Municipal Meetings

 Open Meeting Law Municipal Topic webpage (which contains):

 Open Meeting Law FAQs 

 Open Meeting Law Quick Guide

 Hybrid Public Meeting Toolkit

58

https://www.vlct.org/resource/effective-and-legal-meetings-toolkit
https://www.vlct.org/municipal-assistance/municipal-topics/vermonts-open-meeting-law


VERMONT’S 

PUBLIC RECORDS ACT

(PRA) 

1 V.S.A. §§ 315 - 320

59

https://legislature.vermont.gov/statutes/chapter/01/005


VERMONT’S PUBLIC RECORDS ACT:
WHY DO WE HAVE IT?

“It is the policy of [the Public Records Law] to provide for free and open examination of 
records consistent with Chapter I, Article 6 of the Vermont Constitution . . .

… Public records document the legal responsibilities of government, help protect the 
rights of citizens, and provide citizens a means of monitoring government programs and 
measuring the performance of public officials . . .”

1 V.S.A. § 315

Transparency is the means to achieve 
accountability.

60

https://legislature.vermont.gov/statutes/section/01/005/00315


PUBLIC RECORDS ACT: 
WHAT IS IT?

“’Public record’…means any written or recorded information, regardless of 
physical form or characteristics, which is produced or acquired in the course 
of public agency business. Individual salaries and benefits of and salary 
schedules relating to elected or appointed officials and employees of public 
agencies shall not be exempt from public inspection and copying.”

1 V.S.A. § 317(b)

61

https://legislature.vermont.gov/statutes/section/01/005/00317


PUBLIC RECORDS ACT: 
WHO DOES IT APPLY TO?

 “’Public agency’ or ‘agency’ means any agency, board, committee, 
department, branch, instrumentality, commission, or authority of any 
political subdivision of the State.”

1 V.S.A. § 317(a)(2)

 “Any person may inspect or copy any public record of a public agency, 
as follows…” 

1 V.S.A. § 316(a)

62

https://legislature.vermont.gov/statutes/section/01/005/00317
https://legislature.vermont.gov/statutes/section/01/005/00316


PUBLIC RECORDS ACT: 
WHO DOES IT APPLY TO?

 Custodian is “’[a] person or institution that has charge or custody of 
property, papers, or other valuables.’ One ‘who ha[s] it within their power 
to release or communicate public records.’”

Pease v. Windsor Dev. & Review Bd., 
2011 VT 103

 “Upon request, the custodian of a public record shall promptly produce the 
record for inspection…”

1 V.S.A. § 318(b)

63

https://legislature.vermont.gov/statutes/section/01/005/00318


PUBLIC RECORDS ACT
WHO DOES IT APPLY TO?

64



PUBLIC RECORDS ACT:
WHEN DOES IT APPLY?

“For any agency, board, committee, department, instrumentality, 
commission, or authority of a political subdivision of the State, a person 
may inspect a public record during customary business hours.”

1 V.S.A. § 316(a)(2)

65

https://legislature.vermont.gov/statutes/section/01/005/00316


PUBLIC RECORDS ACT:
WHEN DOES IT APPLY?

 “Any person may inspect or copy any public record of a public agency, as follows…” 1 
V.S.A. § 316(a)

 “[A] person may inspect a public record during customary business hours.” 1 V.S.A. §
316(a)(2)

 “Upon request, the custodian of a public record shall promptly produce the record 
for inspection, except that:” 1 V.S.A. § 318(b)

66

https://legislature.vermont.gov/statutes/section/01/005/00316
https://legislature.vermont.gov/statutes/section/01/005/00316
https://legislature.vermont.gov/statutes/section/01/005/00318


PUBLIC RECORDS ACT:
WHAT DOES IT REQUIRE?

 “Promptly” = “immediately, with little or no 
delay…not more than three business days from 

receipt of a request.”  

1 V.S.A. § 318(a)(1)(A)

67

https://legislature.vermont.gov/statutes/section/01/005/00318


PUBLIC RECORDS ACT:
WHAT DOES IT REQUIRE?

Four Possible Responses:

1. “Promptly” produce the record for inspection or copying;

2. “Promptly” respond that records don’t exist;

3. “Promptly” respond that records are exempt from disclosure;

4. “Promptly” respond that records are in active use or in storage (then provide 
within one week – 7 calendar days);

 *4.1* In “unusual circumstances” custodian may extend the timeframe 
for responding to up to 10 business days from the date of the 
request.

1 V.S.A. § 318(a)(1)(A)

68

https://legislature.vermont.gov/statutes/section/01/005/00318


PUBLIC RECORDS ACT:
WHAT ELSE DOES IT REQUIRE?

 Hear and respond to appeals of public records determinations;

 Only charge copying fees when allowed under law;

 Don’t destroy, give away, sell, discard, or damage public records unless authorized to 
do so under law (i.e., according to VSARA’s record retention schedules).

 Questions related to destruction & organization of public records? Contact:

Vermont State Archives and Records Administration (VSARA)

VSARA Records Specialists
sos.rim@vermont.gov

Main Line: 802-828-3700

69

mailto:sos.rim@vermont.gov


PUBLIC RECORDS ACT:
WHERE TO FIND MORE INFORMATION?

70



VERMONT’S 

Conflict of Interest (COI)

Law

24 V.S.A. § 1984

71

https://legislature.vermont.gov/statutes/section/24/059/01984


CONFLICT OF INTEREST LAW:
WHAT ARE CONFLICTS OF INTEREST?

72



THE CONTEXT OF CONFLICTS OF INTEREST:
EXECUTIVE / LEGISLATIVE / QUASI-JUDICIAL

73



THE SOLUTION:
LEGAL REQUIREMENT / AUTHORITY

 Each municipality (town, city, village) in Vermont MUST adopt a conflict of 

interest prohibition, which MUST contain the following:

1. a definition of "conflict of interest";

2. a list of the elected and appointed officials covered by the prohibition;

3. a method to determine whether a conflict of interest exists;

4. actions that must be taken if a conflict of interest is determined to exist; and

5. a method of enforcement against individuals violating the prohibition. 

24 V.S.A. § 1984

74

https://legislature.vermont.gov/statutes/section/24/059/01984


WHAT IS A “CONFLICT OF INTEREST”?
GOVERNANCE CHARTER

75



WHAT IS A “CONFLICT OF INTEREST”?
CONFLICTS LIVE ON A CONTINUUM

obvious 
conflict

generalized 
interest or 
no conflict

Probable

conflict
??

It’s up to each community to decide what types of 

conduct constitute a “conflict of interest”

76



VLCT MODEL:
MANAGING CONFLICTS

VCLT’s recommendation for managing conflicts of interest:

1. DISCLOSE;

2. DISCUSS;

3. RECUSE (consider: err on the side of caution, especially in quasi-

judicial context);

4. RECORD what transpired in the minutes. 

77



VLCT MODEL:
MANAGING CONFLICTS

REMEDIES:

 If offender is appointed, Legislative Body may:

1. Admonish in public or private;

2. Request or demand recusal;

3. Remove from office.

 If offender is elected, Legislative Body may: 

1. Admonish in public or private;

2. Request recusal (may not force);

3. Request resignation (but may not remove from office).

78



VLCT’S MODEL CONFLICTS OF INTEREST AND ETHICAL 
CONDUCT GUIDANCE AND MODEL POLICY

79



ON THE HORIZON…
H.875 POTENTIAL OVERHAUL OF CONFLICTS AND ETHICS

If H.875 becomes law, takes effect January 1, 2025.

 Shifts definition and process for managing conflicts from locally crafted prohibitions to State 
mandated definitions and process (“Municipal Code of Ethics”);

 Applies to “municipal officers”

 Municipalities can receive “Advisory Opinions” from State Ethics Commission;

 Training requirements for legislative and quasi-judicial bodies, chief administrative officers, 
mayor, and managers:

 Municipalities must make “reasonable efforts” to train all other municipal officers 

 Requires posting of Municipal Code of Ethics;

 Municipalities must also adopt by “ordinance, rule, or personnel policy” procedures for 
investigation of complaints and methods of enforcement and remedies.

VLCT will provide more information in its forthcoming Legislative Session Wrap-Up.
80



CONFLICTS OF INTEREST:
WHERE TO FIND MORE INFORMATION?

81



VLCT MAC Resources Online:

 https://www.vlct.org/topics/vermo
nts-open-meeting-law

 https://www.vlct.org/public-
records

 https://www.vlct.org/topics/ethics-
and-conflicts-interest

Questions?

Get in Touch!

 HTTPS://WWW.VLCT.ORG/LOGIN

 (802) 229-9111 

 INFO@VLCT.ORG

82



Barre Area Development, Inc (BADC)
FY24 YTD Presentation for City 
May 2024

Aimée S. Green,Executive Director                                                P.O. 
Box 265 • Barre, Vermont 05641                                                                                                   

802-476-0660                                
aimee.green@badc.com                                                      
www.badc.com

83

mailto:aimee.green@badc.com
http://www.badc.com


Presentation title in footer 2

Table of Contents

● BADC Benefits to Community

● FY24 Strategy - Initiatives & Objectives

● Focus and Accomplishments FY24 YTD
- Housing & Economic Strategy
- Business Development  
- Execution of Strategic Plan for the Barre area 

● Housing and Business Development FY24 YTD

● 1st Annual Economic Development Summit

● Social Media Key Performance Indicators

● Conversion to 501(c)3 & Personnel ~ Recruitment

● Questions

84



Presentation title in footer 3

• Nurture, promote, sustain and implement economic development in the Barre Community 
(Barre City and Town).

• Develop and work with funding sources to develop, assist and sustain housing and business 
in the Barre community.

• Coordinate economic development services among various local, State and Federal 
agencies and organizations that impact economic and housing development in the Barre 
community.

• Collaborate with the Barre Partnership and other private, not-for-profit and government 
sector organizations to provide joint marketing, business recruitment and retention, and 
support growth in housing.

• Act as a point of contact for information and support regarding economic development in 
both municipalities.

BADC’s Benefits to the Barre Community

85



Presentation title in footer 4

Further growth in the Barre area through: 

○ Targeting regional, and inter/national, demographics to relocate and grow businesses in Barre in 

parallel with facilitating housing growth.

○ Building on inventory platform for potential business owners of available commercial spaces.

○ Strengthening connections with entrepreneurs and businesses throughout the State.

○ Facilitating the Annual Central Vermont Economic Development Summit (May 2024 inaugural).
 

FY24-25 Strategy - Initiative & Objectives 

86



Presentation title in footer 5

- Housing & Economic Strategy
- Business Development 
- Execution of Strategic Plan for the Barre area 

Focus in FY24 and FY25

BADC’s Accomplishments in FY24 (7/1/23-6/30/24) YTD 
Housing & Economic Strategy

Placement on Regional Priorities List pending for 2nd year in a row for 
the Prospect Heights Housing Project. Pending all needed due 
diligence, the development of Prospect Heights will be a clear solution 
to help to make a dent in the housing crisis for not just immediate Barre 
area, but also the Central Vermont region with up to 128 housing units. 
Successful applications now underway with large federal grantors for 
the $6MM infrastructure project: first phase. 

Business Development

Ongoing Vermont, regional, national and international business 
recruitment and outreach which includes successful business 
deployments and loan facilitations in Barre YTD. Details of all provided 
through monthly public Board of Directors meeting. 87



Presentation title in footer 6

Execution of 3-5 year Strategic Plan for the Barre area

BADC’s Accomplishments in FY24 (7/1/23-6/30/24) YTD 

- The Strategic Planning Board Retreats are now complete which included full outreach to stakeholders. 
- Preparing a final review of proposed 3-5 years goals and focus for the entire Barre area to include:

- Housing Development: Addressing the pressing need for housing across all income levels by focusing on 
both affordable and market-rate housing options. Collaborate with housing task force to develop a 
comprehensive plan to address aging housing stock, including strategies for redevelopment and multi-income 
housing.

- Economic Development: Focusing on business attraction, retention, and entrepreneurial efforts to support 
local businesses and stimulate economic growth. Work with existing businesses to foster growth, and explore 
opportunities for new businesses to thrive in Barre area.

- Marketing and Promotion: Enhancing marketing efforts to showcase the positive aspects of Barre and attract 
visitors, residents, and businesses. Emphasize the City and Town's amenities, recreational opportunities, and 
civic-minded businesses to highlight its vibrancy and appeal.

- Community Engagement and Planning: Continued building of relationships within the community through 
fostering strong relationships. Working with organizations to develop comprehensive plans for housing 
development and community revitalization. Leverage partnerships and resources to achieve shared goals and 
objectives. 88



Presentation title in footer 7

Housing and Business Development FY24 YTD: January & February

89



Presentation title in footer 8

Housing and Business Development FY24 YTD: March

90



Presentation title in footer 9

Housing and Business Development FY24 YTD: April

91



1st Annual Economic Development Summit
The Central Vermont Economic Development Summit on May 3rd at the Vermont Granite Museum was a 
power-packed day which brought together local businesses, entrepreneurs, and economic development experts 
for a full day of information, workshops, exhibitors and speakers

- 15 exhibitors
- 8 workshop providers
- 3 speakers
- over 75 attendees

92



Social Media Key Performance 
Indicators (KPI’s)

93



Presentation title in footer 12

Social Media FY24 YTD

94



Presentation title in footer 13

Social Media Highlights

95



Conversion to 501(c)3 & Personnel ~ Recruitment

Recruitment of Marketing Administration Manager to assist with growth and execution of 3-5 Year 
Strategic Plan

Will assist with administrative and financial tasks, database management, budgets for projects, data and 
metrics, and all marketing related duties including creation and implementation of overall marketing 
strategy, and serving as a representative  to BADC for all stakeholders in the communities. 

Summer Intern

Recruited Summer Intern, Jasmin Sackey, from Norwich University who began on May 9th to assist with 
Commercial Database and Metrics Tracking 

Personnel Growth & Recruitment

Conversion to 501(c) 3

Process to convert  to a 501(c) 3 now complete with attorneys with all required 
organizational documentation filed/pending with the Internal Revenue Service.

96



Presentation title in footer 15

Q & A

Shannon Alexander Photography97



Page 1 of 1 

 

City of Barre, Vermont 
“Granite Center of the World” 

 
ACTION ITEM BRIEFING MEMO 

CITY COUNCIL AGENDA: 5/21/2024 
 

Agenda Item No. 8-D 
 

AGENDA ITEM DESCRIPTION: Assign Council liaisons to committees  
 

SUBMITTING DEPARTMENT/PERSON: The Manager  
 

STAFF RECCOMENDATION: Make appointments of Councilors as liaisons to committees 
 

BACKGROUND INFORMATION:   
 

The City Council has created 8 non-mandatory public bodies.  Volunteers are appointed to these committees 

and they are staffed by City employees.  Only one committee, the Police Advisory Committee, has an assigned 

Council liaison (Councilor Waszazak).  

 

In April 2024, the City of Barre started the application and re-application process for seats with expiring terms.  

With few exceptions, the interest level was low.  Below is a result of the application process so far: 

 Buildings & Facilities Committee – All incumbents reapplied and 2 new applicants for one vacant seat 

 Cow Pasture Stewardship Committee – 2 incumbents DID NOT apply and no new applicants 

 Cemeteries Committee – 1 incumbent DID NOT apply and 2 new applicants for 3 vacancies 

 Justice, Equity, Diversity, Inclusion & Belonging Committee - 1 incumbent DID NOT apply and no 

student applicants 

 Homelessness Task Force – 3 incumbents DID NOT apply and no new applicants 

 Police Advisory Committee - 1 incumbent DID NOT apply and no new applicants 

 Parks & Rec Committee -3 incumbents DID NOT apply and no new applicants 

 Transportation & Public Works Committee - 3 incumbents DID NOT apply and no new applicants 

 

City staff has extended the application deadline and advertised open seats on the website, social media, and in 

the Times Argus.  Unless additional applicants come forward, these results would mean that the Parks & Rec 

and Transportation & Public Works Committees would not be able to meet for lack of a quorum.   

 

One option that prior Councils have discussed to make the committee experience more rewarding is to assign 

Council liaisons to these bodies.  Such an appointment would give Councilors a direct view into the actions of 

committees, and connect the work of the committees more directly with Council priorities. 

 

Staff recommends that Council appoint liaisons to attempt to rejuvenate City committees, and perhaps 

encourage new volunteers to step forward into these vacant roles.   
  

RECOMMENDED ACTION/MOTION:  

 

Move to appoint Councilor ______________ to the ___________________ Committee/Task Force. 

98



1 
 

City of Barre, Vermont 
“Granite Center of the World” 

 
ACTION ITEM BRIEFING MEMO 
CITY COUNCIL AGENDA ITEM 

CITY COUNCIL AGENDA: 05-21-2024 
 

Consent Item No.:  ______   Discussion Item No. ______ Action Item No. _8F__ 
 
AGENDA ITEM DESCRIPTION:  Resolution #2024-08:  Financial authorization of Cheryl Metivier, 
Barre City Clerk/Treasurer  
 
SUBJECT:  Same 
 
SUBMITTING DEPARTMENT/PERSON:  Manager 
 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION:  Approve resolution 
 
STRATEGIC OUTCOME/PRIOR ACTION:  Not applicable 
 
EXPENDITURE REQUIRED:  None. 
 
FUNDING SOURCE(S):  Not applicable. 
 
LEGAL AUTHORITY/REQUIREMENTS: 

BARRE CITY CHARTER, Chapter 3.  Sec. 307. {Powers of City; policy matters; appointment of 
certain officers.} 
    All powers of the City and the determination of all matters of policy shall be vested in the City 
Council except as otherwise provided by this act or by general law. 

 
BACKGROUND/SUPPLEMENTAL INFORMATION: 

Most banks, investment firms, and other financial institutions require a corporate resolution 
authorizing an individual or individuals to make financial management decisions and actions on 
behalf of the account holder.  While the elected treasurer has the authority to control municipal 
funds, they do not have the authority to open and close accounts without the attached resolution.  
Adoption of the resolution will allow Clerk/Treasurer Metivier to work with former 
Clerk/Treasurer Dawes to transfer authorizations and signatures for all banking and investment 
accounts, and allow Clerk/Treasurer Metivier to perform such necessary duties on behalf of the 
City in the future. 

 
LINK(S):  Not applicable 
 
ATTACHMENTS:  Resolution #2024-08 
 
INTERESTED/AFFECTED PARTIES:  Council, Manager, Clerk/Treasurer, City financial and 
investment institutions 
 
RECOMMENDED ACTION/MOTION:  Approval of resolution #2024-08 
 

99



RESOLUTION 2024-08 
 

Financial Authorization of Cheryl Metivier, Barre City Clerk and Treasurer 
 
WHEREAS; This resolution shall effect any and all financial institutions designated as depositories for the funds of the 
City of Barre and providers of other financial accommodations indicated in this resolution; and 
 
WHEREAS; This resolution shall continue to have effect until express written notice of its rescission or medication has 
been received and recorded by said financial institutions.  Any and all prior resolutions adopted by the City of Barre and 
certified to said financial institutions as governing the operation of the City of Barre’s account(s) are in full force and 
effect until said financial institutions receive and acknowledge an express written notice of its revocation, modification or 
replacement.  Any revocation, modification or replacement of a resolution must be accompanied by documentation, 
satisfactory to said financial institutions, establishing the authority for the changes; and 
 
WHEREAS; The signature of an Agent on this resolution is conclusive evidence of their authority to act on behalf of the 
City of Barre.  Any Agent, so long as they act in a representative capacity as agents of the City of Barre, is authorize to 
make any and all other contracts, agreements, stipulations and orders which they may deem advisable for the effective 
exercise of the powers indicated on page one, from time to time with said financial institutions, subject to any restrictions 
or this resolution or otherwise agreed to in writing; and 
 
WHEREAS; All transactions, if any, with respect to any deposits, withdrawals, rediscounts and borrowings by or on 
behalf of the City of Barre with said financial institutions prior to the adoption of this resolution are hereby ratified, 
approved and confirmed; and 
 
WHEREAS;  The City of Barre agrees to the terms and conditions of any account agreement, property opened by any 
Agent of the City of Barre.  The City of Barre authorizes said financial institutions, at any time, to charge the City of 
Barre for all checks, drafts, or other orders, for the payment of money, that are drawn on said financial institutions, so 
long as they contain the required number of signatures for this purpose; and 
 
WHEREAS; The City of Barre acknowledges and agrees that said financial institutions may furnish at their discretion 
automated access devices to the Agent(s) of the City of Barre to facilitate those powers authorized by this resolution or 
other resolutions in effect at the time of issuance.  The term “automated access device” includes, but is not limited to, 
credit cards, automated teller machines (ATA), and debit cards; and 
 
WHEREAS;  The City of Barre acknowledges and agrees that said financial institutions may rely on alternative signature 
and verification codes issues to or obtained from the Agent named on this resolution.  The term “alternative signature and 
verification codes” includes, but is not limited to, facsimile signatures on file with said financial institutions, personal 
identification numbers (PIN), and digital signatures.  If a facsimile signature specimen has been provided on this 
resolution, (or that are filed separately by the City of Barre with said financial institutions from time to time) said financial 
institutions are authorized to treat the facsimile signature as the signature of the Agent(s) regardless of by whom or by 
what means the facsimile signature may have been affixed so long as it resembles the facsimile signature specimen on 
file.  The City of Barre authorizes each Agent to have custody of the City of Barre’s private key used to create a digital 
signature and to request issuance of a certificate listing the corresponding public key.  Said financial institutions shall have 
no responsibility or liability for unauthorized use of alternative signatures and verification codes unless otherwise agreed 
to in writing. 
 

NO THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED 
 
That we, the undersigned members of the Barre City Council, do hereby name Barre City Clerk and Treasurer Cheryl 
Metivier as the City of Barre Agent, with the rights, duties and responsibilities so outlined in this Resolution. 
 

LET IT BE FURTHER RESOLVED 
 
That a copy of this Resolution is to be presented to any and all financial institutions designated as depositories for the 
funds of the City of Barre and providers of other financial accommodations indicated in this resolution, and a copy will be 
placed on file in the permanent records of the City of Barre. 
 

RESOLVED BY ORDER OF THE BARRE CITY COUNCIL THIS 21st DAY OF MAY, 2024 
 
_____________________________   _____________________________ 
Thomas J. Lauzon, Mayor    Cheryl Metivier, City Clerk and Treasurer 
 

City Councilors 
 
_____________________________   _____________________________ 
Emel Cambel      Michael Deering III 
 
 
_____________________________   _____________________________ 
Amanda Gustin      Sonya Spaulding 
 
 
_____________________________   _____________________________ 
Samn Stockwell      Edward Waszazak 

100


	8. 8-F Clerk Resolution.pdf
	Council cover memo - authorization of C Metivier as treasurer 5-21-24
	Resolution 2024-08 authorizing Cheryl Metivier as finanial agent




